
71                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                  (AUGUST 20) (Week 34 of 2024) 

                                     
                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                     
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark E. Nelson         Keith W. Radig        Jeremy J. Taylor        Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held August 20, 2024, at 
4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of taking 
official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before 
the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

                          
3:30 p.m.     Closed Session {Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c)} – First Floor Boardroom 
 
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                     1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                  Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

Items 2 through 7 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                    2.  Approval of the minutes of the August 13, 2024 meeting 

 

                    3.  Approval of claims  

 

                    4.  Board Administration – Heather VanSickle 

                         Approval of Notice of Property Sale Resolution for Parcel #894729285006 (aka 512 – 14 Market   

                         Street) for Tuesday, September 3rd at 4:35 p.m. 

 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

 

                    5.  Deputy Commissioner of Elections – Steve Hofmeyer 

                         Receive the appointments of Connie Westphal and Ruth Groth as council members for the City   

                         of Anthon 

 

                   6.  Deputy County Auditor – Michelle Skaff 

                        Receive amended Auditor’s Quarterly Report to replace the approved report on July 3 

 

                   7.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                        a.  Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 

                        b.  Authorization to Initiate Hiring Process 

 

                    End Consent Agenda 

 

                  8.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                       Approval to create a Human Resources temporary secretary position                              Action 

 

                  9.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                       Approval of the Secondary Roads Driveway and Entrance Policy, PPM#1                      Action 

 

  Recess Board of Supervisors Meeting 

Convene Bennett McDonald Levee & Wolf Creek Drainage Districts Trustees meeting 

 

                10.   ISG – Caleb Rasmussen & Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra  

                       Discussion of flood damage, repair and response to Corps of Engineers                     Information 

 

Adjourn Bennett McDonald Levee & Wolf Creek Drainage Districts Trustees meeting 

Continue Board of Supervisors meeting 

 

                11.  Board of Supervisors – Matthew Ung 

                       a.  Approval to reallocate $173,291 of unspent American Rescue Plan Act funds               Action 

                            to expense category 3.4 in accordance with plan rules 

                       b.  Receive into record Woodbury County’s July 12, 2024, motion to reconsider          Information 

                            final decision and order with the Iowa Utilities Commission regarding 

                            Summit Carbon Solutions, LLC and their hazardous liquid pipeline permit 

                            including rights of eminent domain 

 

                12.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                  Information    

 

                13.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                          Information  

  

                14.  Board Concerns                                                                                                           Information    

  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                               
WED., AUG 21   12:00 p.m.     Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

MON., AUG 26    5:00 p.m.      Zoning Commission Meeting, First Floor Boardroom  

THU., AUG 29      1:30 p.m.     SIMPCO Community and Economic Development Meeting, 6401 Gordan Dr.                                                                                         

WED., SEP 4      10:00 a.m.     Loess Hills Alliance Stewardship Meeting, Pisgah, Iowa 

                            11:00 a.m.     Loess Hills Alliance Executive Meeting 

                              1:00 p.m.     Loess Hills Alliance Full Board Meeting 

                              4:45 p.m.    Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.  

                              6:00 p.m.     Board of Adjustment Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom 

THU., SEP 5        12:00 p.m.    SIMPCO Regional Policy & Legislative Affairs Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordan Dr. 

FRI., SEP 6           9:00 a.m.     Hungry Canyons Alliance Fall Meeting, Loess Hills State Forest Visitor Center, Pisgah                              

WED., SEP 11      8:05 a.m.     Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 

                           12:00 p.m.     District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 

                             6:30 p.m.     911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill 

THU., SEP 12    12:00 p.m.     SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive                             

WED., SEP 18   12:00 p.m.     Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

THU., SEP 19      4:30 p.m.     Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   

FRI., SEP 20      12:00 p.m.     Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave. 

 

                            

 

 

 
 
     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



AUGUST 13, 2024, THIRTY-THIRD MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, August 13, 2024, at 4:30 p.m.  Board members present were Ung, Nelson, Radig, 
Bittinger II, and Taylor.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, Human 
Resources Director, and Patrick Gill, Auditor/Clerk to the Board.  
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1.  Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve the agenda for August 13, 2024.  Carried 5-0.   Copy filed. 
 

Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2.  To approve minutes of the August 06, 2024, meeting.  Copy filed. 
  
3.  To approve the claims totaling $859,877.62.  Copy filed. 
 
4. To approve and authorize the chairperson to sign a Resolution approving petition for suspension of taxes through 

the redemption process for Susan Rae Janssen, parcel #894730331012.  
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,787 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PETITION FOR SUSPENSION OF TAXES 
THROUGH THE REDEMPTION PROCESS 

WHEREAS, Susan Rae Janssen and as titleholder of property located at 225 S. Casselman Street, Sioux City, Iowa, 
Woodbury County, Iowa, and legally described as follows: 

Parcel # 894730331012  

HIGHLAND 1 & 2 S 150 FT LOT 54 & N ½ VAC W HORNE AVE LYING BETWEEN LOT 54 & LOT 67 

WHEREAS, Susan Rae Janssen, as  titleholder of the aforementioned property has petitioned the Board of 
Supervisors for a suspension of taxes pursuant to the 2017 Iowa Code Section 447.9(3) and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors recognizes from documents provided that the petitioner is unable to provide to 
the public revenue; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors hereby directs the County 
Auditor to redeem this property Parcel #894730331012 owned by the petitioner from the holder of a certificate of 
purchase of the amount necessary to redeem under section 447.9, and hereby directs the Woodbury County 
Treasurer to so record the approval of this tax suspension for this parcel. 

SO RESOLVED this 16th day of August, 2022. 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Copy filed. 

 
5a. To approve the separation of Blasé Sanford, Temporary Engineering Aide, Secondary Roads Dept, effective 8-23-

2024., End of Temp Work; the appointment of David Brown, Operations Officer-PT EMT, Emergency Services Dept., 
effective 8-19-2024, $23.90/hour. Job Vacancy Posted on 5/31/2023. Entry Level Salary: $23.90/hour.; 
appointment of Bethany Lukart, Operations Officer-PT EMT, Emergency Services Dept., effective 8-19-2024, 
$23.90/hour. Job Vacancy Posted on 5/31/2023. Entry Level Salary: $23.90/hour.; the transfer of Adam Kirkpatrick, 
Deputy Sheriff, Sheriff’s Office, effective 8-13-2024, $29.13/hour, 19%=$4.56/hr. Transfer from Correctional Officer 
Deputy.  Authorization to Hire Approved 5/13/2024.; the transfer of Phoenix Larned, Deputy Sheriff, Sheriff’s 
Office, effective 8-13-2024, $29.13/hour, 14%=$3.56/hr. Transfer from Correctional Officer to Deputy. 



August 13, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 2 
 

 

 

 

Authorization to Hire Approved 5/13/2024.; and the appointment of Saul Luna-Perez, Deputy Sheriff, Sheriff’s 
Office, effective 8-13-2024, $29.13/hour. Authorization to Hire. Approved 5/13/2024. Copy filed. 

 
5b. Presentation of Award Certificate to Mark Nahra. Copy filed. 
 
5c. To approve a new copier lease agreement with Access Systems.  Copy filed. 
 
6a. To approve the permit to work in the right of way for Mitch Parker.  Copy filed. 
 
 Carried 5-0. 
 
7. Motion by Taylor second by Bittinger to approve to direct the auditor to redeem remaining balance of tax sale 

certificate in the amount of $1,885.71 for parcel 894301379006.  Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 
8a. Motion by Radig second by Nelson to approve the client authorization to bind the Business Income & Extra 

Expense Coverage through ICAP.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
8b. Motion by Radig second by Taylor to approve the AFSCME County Attorney MOU. Carried 5-0.  Copy filed.  
 
9a. Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve contract for project number L-B(J178)—73-97 bridge replacement 

project with Graves Construction Co. Inc. for $606,737.87. Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 
9b. Bid letting was held for Propane – FY2025.  The bids are as follows: 
 
 Johnson Propane, Battle Creek, IA   $1.06/Gal 
 Sapp Bros Petroleum Inc., Sioux City, IA  $1.399/Gal 
 New Cooperative Inc., Hornick, IA   $1.25/Gal 
 

Motion by Radig second by Nelson to receive the bids and refer them to the County Engineer for recommendation. 
Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
Motion by Taylor second by Ung to award the bid for Propane FY2025 to Johnson Propane for $1.06/Gal.  Carried 
5-0. Copy filed. 

 
9c. Bid letting was held for Calcium Chloride – 2025.  The bids are as follows: 
  
 Scotwood Industries, Overland Park, KS  $42,944.00 
 EnviroTech Services, Indianola, IA   $65,120.00 
 Perk Products, Nashville, TN   $43,560.00 
 

Motion by Taylor second by Ung to receive the bids and refer them to the County Engineer for recommendation.  
Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
9d. Motion by Radig second by Ung to award bid for Calcium Chloride – 2025 to Scotwood Industries for $42,944.00.  

Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 
9e. Motion by Radig second by Ung to award bid to Graves Construction Co., Inc. for $606,737.87 precast RCB culvert 

to replace 12’ reinforced concrete slap located on 220th St.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
9f. Information was presented regarding changes to the secondary road dust control policy.  Copy filed. 
 
10a.  Motion by Radig second by Taylor to approve the funding request of $150,000 from the Opiod Remediation 

Settlement Fund to Agape Community Services for the hiring of an Executive Director for the purpose of obtaining 
necessary licenses, grant resources, networking, fund-raising and creating the infrastructure for opening a 
substance abuse treatment center.  Carried 4-0; Bittinger abstained. Copy filed. 



August 13, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 3 
 

 

 

 

 
10b. Motion by Radig second by Nelson to approve using $1,000 from Gaming Revenue to support the Sioux City 

Symphony Orchestra for the construction of a Musical Education Center and to authorize the Chairperson to sign 
the resolution of support for the SCSO grant application.  Carried 5-0. 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA: 
RESOLUTION #13,788 

COMMUNITY ATTRACTIONS AND TOURISM GRANT APPLICATION 
GILCHRIST MUSIC EDUCATION CENTER 

 
Whereas, the Sioux City Symphony Orchestra is eligible for Community Attraction and Tourism grant funding 
from the Iowa Economic Development Authority and; 

 
Whereas, the County of Woodbury, is committed to the Gilchrist Music Education Center and; 

 
Whereas, the funding requirements are secured with the County of Woodbury committing $1,000 to support 
the Gilchrist Music Education Center, and; 

 
Whereas, other entities and donors have committed $966,000 to support the project, now, 

 
Be It Therefore Resolved on this 13th Day of August 2024 that the County of Woodbury endorses the 
application for Community Attraction and Tourism Grant Funding for the project.  

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
11. Motion by Bittinger second by Ung to direct county staff to study & review for potential changes to the WECS 

ordinance.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed.  
 
12. Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
13. There were no citizen concerns. 
 
14. Board concerns were heard. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until August 20, 2024. 
  
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 
 

















     

     

     

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT         
                                                                             

MEMORANDUM OF PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS                                                       
                          
                                         * PERSONNEL ACTION CODE:          
DATE:  _August 20th, 2024__                  A- Appointment                      R-Reclassification 

                                                                                   T - Transfer   E- End of Probation 

                                                                                        P - Promotion   S - Separation 

      D - Demotion   O – Other 

 

TO:  WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

NAME 

 

DEPARTMENT 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

 

JOB TITLE 

SALARY 

REQUESTED 

 

% 

INCREASE 

 

* 

 

REMARKS 

 

 

Mosqueda, 

Maria 

 

 

Building Services 

 

 

8-22-2024 

 

 

Custodian 

 

 

$17.29/hour 

 

 

 

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted 

6/3/2024.  

Entry Level 

Salary: 

$17.29/hour 

 

Greer, Emily 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

8-19-2024 

 

Jail Sergeant 

 

$36.76/hour 

44%=$11.19/

hour 

 

P 

 

Promoted to 

Sergeant. 

 

Ham, Taryn 

 

 

Human Resources 

 

8-23-2024 

 

Clerk II 

   

S 

 

Resignation 

 

Lamoureux, 

Michael 

 

 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

8-5-2024 

 

 

Civilian Jailer 

 

$33.24/hour 

 

 

0% 

 

 

T 

Transfer from 

Court Security 

Officer to 

Civilian Jailer. 

 

Moodie, 

Clifford 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

8-5-2024 

 

Civilian Jailer 

 

$33.24/hour 

 

0% 

 

T 

Transfer from 

Court Security 

Officer to 

Civilian Jailer. 

 

Hatfield, 

Jonathon 

 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

8-5-2024 

 

Court Security 

Officer 

 

 

$33.24/hour 

 

 

0% 

 

 

T 

Transfer from 

Civilian Jailer 

to Court 

Security 

Officer. 

 

 

Vogt, Ronald 

 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

8-5-2024 

 

Court Security 

Officer 

 

 

$33.24/hour 

 

 

0% 

 

 

T 

Transfer from 

Civilian Jailer 

to Court 

Security  

Officer. 

        

 

 

 

APPROVED BY BOARD DATE:          ______________________________  

 

       

 

MELISSA THOMAS, HR DIRECTOR:        ______________________________ 

           

 



HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 

 DATE: August 20, 2024 

 

AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE HIRING PROCESS 

DEPARTMENT POSITION ENTRY LEVEL APPROVED DISAPPROVED 

 

Human Resources 

 

Senior Clerk 

AFSCME 

Courthouse: 

$21.15/hour 

  

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

Jail Sergeant 

CWA: 

$36.76/hour 

  

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

___________________________________________  

Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
(AUTHFORM.doc/FORMS) 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

08/15/2024 08/20/2024

Melissa Thomas HR Director 

✔

✔

Approval to create a Human Resources Temporary Secretary position.  

Human Resources is down 2 FTE's due to resignations. 

With 2 full time positions currently open, adding this temp position would help HR through the transitioning and 
training of two new employees. 

There will be no financial impact due to a senior clerk position being unfilled since the beginning of the fiscal 
year. The cost of the temp position is $7418.83

Approve the motion

Motion to approve and authorize to hire a HR temp secretary position





































WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

08/15/2024 8/20/2024

Chairman Matthew Ung 

According to American Rescue Plan Act ("ARPA") rules, all funds must be obligated by Dec. 31, 2024, and must be spent in 
obligated projects by Dec. 31, 2026. With $173,291.65 in ARPA funds currently remaining from previously completed projects, 
these funds should be reallocated to projects which will spend the funds before the deadline. Projects have been identified to 
complete this step now.

Attachments and their explanations are listed below. 
 
1) Available ARPA funds--by Dennis Butler, Shane Albrecht, and Matthew Ung 
 
EXPLANATION: The total available fund balance comes from several different ARPA expense categories which are completed or 
which for other reasons can be unobligated. Of major note: 
 
a) Administrative Expenses (UHY; Baker Group) -- $40,000 is available from this category because UHY, which acted as our ARPA 
compliance consultant/advisor, came in under budget. Baker Group's contracted services in this area saved Woodbury County 
money by offsetting a lot of expenses that otherwise would have payable to UHY at a much higher rate. This still leaves money in 
this category for UHY to provide services in response to any future auditing needs, but we will need to revisit this prior to December 
31, 2024 in order to not forfeit any unexpended funds. 
b) County Attorney 4% FY23 and FY24 -- $53,822.38 is available from this category due to persistent staff vacancies in the County 
Attorney's Office. 
c) Trosper Hoyt Emergency Repairs -- $60,000 is available from this category due to further eligible expenses being unidentified. 
---------- 
2) Memorandum from Iowa Judicial Branch to Iowa State Association of Counties 
 
EXPLANATION: Apparently, new state law says that if counties decide to renovate and improve the space used by the state judicial 
branch, counties ALSO have to pay 25% of new furnishings, supplies, and equipment expenditures chosen by the state judicial 
branch after they get the new space. Why 25%? Because the law says 25%! Surprise! 
 
---------- 
3) Payment request from Iowa Judicial Branch to Woodbury County in the amount of $75,096.66 
 
EXPLANATION: Fortunately, this unanticipated expense due to a new state law is an allowed category under ARPA rules.

Approval to reallocate $173,291.65 of unspent American Rescue Plan Act funds to expense category 
3.4 in accordance with plan rules

✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

For simplicity, all $173,291.65 of currently available ARPA funds can be reallocated to one expense category and one project, as 
detailed below. 
 
ARPA Expense Category 3.4 -- Public Sector Capacity: Effective Service Delivery 
Project Description: Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment for new LEC Facility as needed by Woodbury County 
 
CURRENT EXPENSES: 
$75,096.66 to Iowa Judicial Branch 
$40,000.00 to moving or purchase expenses of cooler and freezer to new Woodbury County Law Enforcement Center 
 
FUTURE EXPENSE: 
$58,194.99 to building services department, for furniture, fixtures, and equipment expenses for congregate settings (Law 
Enforcement Center). It is completely reasonable to anticipate expenses in this category of $58,194.99 between now and the end of 
2026. 
 

See below.

Reallocate $173,291.65 of unspent American Rescue Plan Act funds to ARPA Expense Category 3.4 (Public 
Sector Capacity: Effective Service Delivery) and Project Identification Number ARPA 13



Available ARPA Funds

ARPA # ARPA TITLE
AMOUNT 
Obligated

AMOUNT 
Expended

AMOUNT 
Unspent

AMOUNT
Available

ARPA 6 Sheriff's Correctional Officers FY 23 345,000.00$      348,922.66$         (3,922.66)$     (3,922.66)$     
ARPA 7 S.R. Road Maintenance CWA Union Workers FY 23 115,000.00$      114,652.08$         347.92$           347.92$           
ARPA 8 EMS Employees FY 23 52,909.00$         52,743.50$            165.50$           165.50$           
ARPA 10 Adminstrative Fees (UHY; Baker Group) 82,000.00$         19,900.00$            62,100.00$    40,000.00$    
ARPA 15 County Attorney 4% FY23 and FY24 118,853.00$      65,030.62$            53,822.38$    53,822.38$    
ARPA 17 County Attorney Internship 10,000.00$         7,004.77$               2,995.23$       2,995.23$       
ARPA 18 Conservation & Emergency Services Radios 162,745.00$      157,901.99$         4,843.01$       1,743.01$       
ARPA 19 Trospher/Hoyt Emergency Repairs 200,000.00$      139,477.27$         60,522.73$    60,522.73$    
ARPA 22 #2 County Union Workers Retention 108,894.00$      91,276.46$            17,617.54$    17,617.54$    

Totals 1,195,401.00$  996,909.35$         198,491.65$ 173,291.65$ 



1 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Iowa State Association of Counties 

From:  Iowa Judicial Branch 

Re:  Limiting Judicial Branch Contribution to Furnishings and Equipment that are Required 

by County Renovation or Construction to 75% (effective 7/1/23) 

Date:  2/4/23 

 

Background 

 

In the 2022 Iowa Code, Iowa Code section 602.11101(1)(e)(2) provided: 

 

(2) Until July 1, 1986, the county shall remain responsible for the compensation of and 

operating costs for court employees not presently designated for state financing and for 

miscellaneous costs of the judicial branch related to furnishings, supplies, and equipment 

purchased, leased, or maintained for the use of judicial officers, referees, and their staff. 

Effective July 1, 1986, the state shall assume the responsibility for the compensation of 

and operating costs for court employees presently designated for state financing and for 

miscellaneous costs of the judicial branch related to furnishings, supplies, and equipment 

purchased, leased, or maintained for the use of judicial officers, referees, and their staff. 

However, the county shall at all times remain responsible for the provision of suitable 

courtrooms, offices, and other physical facilities pursuant to section 602.1303, subsection 

1, including paint, wall covering, and fixtures in the facilities. 

 

Effective July 1, 2022, HF 2579, section 18 (2022 RIIF Bill) added the following provision at the 

end of the above subparagraph:  

 

In addition, however, effective July 1, 2023, if a county expends moneys for the 

renovation or construction of suitable courtrooms, offices, and other physical facilities 

pursuant to section 602.1303, that requires the purchase of furnishings, supplies, and 

equipment for the use of judicial officers, referees, and their staff as a result of that 

renovation or construction, the state shall be responsible for only seventy-five percent of 

the cost of the purchase.  

 

Analysis 

 

The statutory change to Iowa Code section 602.11101(1)(e)(2) for sharing the cost of 

furnishings, supplies, and equipment provides that the change is effective July 1, 2023. However, 

there is some ambiguity as to the applicability of the provision.  

 

Absent further legislative instruction, the judicial branch intends to apply the change in law to 

purchases made with moneys appropriated on or after July 1, 2023. 

 

 



2 
 

We believe this approach is consistent with legislative intent because the change in Iowa Code 

section 602.11101 was passed in the same bill that provided 100% of the judicial branch’s 

request for furnishings, supplies, and equipment for FY23. This approach defers to the 

legislature’s authority to appropriate the amount the legislature deems appropriate for furnishings 

and equipment for county-initiated renovation or construction of court-controlled spaces. Finally, 

this approach is the most transparent and easiest for the judicial branch and counties to 

implement going forward.  

 

 

Conclusion 

The judicial branch recognizes that the applicability of HF 2579, bill section 18 (2022 RIIF bill) 

is ambiguous. To start the conversation on the interpretation of this provision, the judicial branch 

offers the interpretation that HF 2579, bill section 18 caps the judicial branch’s contribution to 

furnishings, supplies, and equipment at 75% of the cost of the purchase, beginning with 

purchases funded by moneys appropriated by the legislature to the judicial branch that take effect 

on or after July 1, 2023. 

 

 

 







WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 



 

1 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

IOWA UTILITIES COMMISSION 

 

 

IN RE: 

 

SUMMIT CARBON SOLUTIONS, LLC 

 

PETITION FOR HAZARDOUS LIQUID 

PIPELINE PERMIT 

 

 

DOCKET NO.  

 

HLP-2021-0001 

 

 

 

COME NOW, the Supervisors of Shelby County, Kossuth County, Floyd County, Emmet 

County, Dickinson County, Wright County, and Woodbury County (“the Counties”), by and 

through the undersigned counsel, and in support of their Motion to Reconsider Final Decision and 

Order (“Motion”) in this docket state as follows. 

MOTION TO RECONSIDER FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 

On June 25, 2024, the Iowa Utilities Board issued a Final Decision and Order in this docket 

approving a permit for Summit Carbon Solutions (“the Order”). On July 1, 2024, pursuant to 

recently enacted legislation, the Iowa Utilities Board was renamed the Iowa Utilities Commission 

(“Commission”).1 While the agency uses the term Board in the Order when referring to itself, the 

Counties in this Motion will adopt the new name, which took effect on July 1, 2024. 

Under the Commission’s rules, “Any party to a contested case may file an application for 

rehearing or reconsideration of the final decision.” See 199 Iowa Administrative Code rule 7.27(1). 

See also Iowa Code §§ 17A.16 and 476.12. The Counties were parties to this proceeding. See Final 

Decision and Order at 8. Under Iowa Code §§ 17A.16 and 476.12 and Iowa Administrative Code 

 
1 See 2024 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2385. https://iuc.iowa.gov/press-release/2024-07-02/iowa-utilities-board-now-

iowa-utilities-commission. 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001

https://iuc.iowa.gov/press-release/2024-07-02/iowa-utilities-board-now-iowa-utilities-commission
https://iuc.iowa.gov/press-release/2024-07-02/iowa-utilities-board-now-iowa-utilities-commission


 

2 

 

rule 199 – 7.27(1), for the reasons described below, the Counties hereby move the Commission to 

reconsider the Order. 

BRIEF STATEMENT OF THE GROUNDS FOR ERROR 

As the Commission explained in the Order, the parties to this proceeding are numerous and 

the record is voluminous. See Final Decision and Order at 7-8. The Order itself is 507 pages long. 

The Commission elected to discuss in the Order only certain arguments and evidence, and issued 

a blanket rejection for other arguments and evidence. The Order states, “The entire record and 

legal arguments of the parties has been considered by the Board. If an argument or piece of 

evidence is not discussed in this order, the Board has found that argument or piece of evidence to 

be irrelevant or lacking in sufficient argument to warrant specific discussion.” See Final Decision 

and Order at 13 (emphasis supplied). The Ordering Clauses section of the Order includes a general 

rejection of anything not specifically addressed and states, “Arguments presented in written filings 

or made orally at the hearing that are not addressed specifically in this final decision and order 

are rejected, either as not supported by the evidence or as not being of sufficient persuasiveness 

to warrant detailed discussion.” See Final Decision and Order at 477 (emphasis supplied). The 

Counties interpret this as a catch-all rejection of arguments made during the proceeding but not 

discussed in the Order, including certain arguments the Counties made. 

The Commission has a rule setting forth the form for requesting rehearing or 

reconsideration. “Applications for rehearing or reconsideration shall specify the findings of fact 

and conclusions of law claimed to be erroneous, with a brief statement of the alleged grounds of 

error.” See Iowa Administrative Code rule 199 – 7.27(2). The Counties argue that the Order 

contains errors of both fact and law such that the Commission should reconsider the Order. 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

3 

 

The Counties recognize that significant effort was required to consider the record and 

render a 507-page decision in this matter and trust that the Commission recognizes that a brief 

statement of the grounds for error is also challenging. Just as the Commission elected to limit its 

discussion in the Order to the arguments it deemed most significant, the Counties also will not 

attempt to discuss in detail every individual finding, conclusion or ground for error in this Motion. 

However, to the extent that the Counties raised other legal or factual matters during the proceeding, 

proposed other findings or conclusions, or made other arguments that are documented elsewhere 

in the record but not specifically discussed in this Motion, any and all errors in the Commission’s 

consideration or rejection of those matters, findings, conclusions or arguments, whether in the 

Order or in other orders or rulings, are hereby incorporated in this Motion by reference and 

preserved for purposes of judicial review under Iowa Code chapter 17A. 

In this Motion, to keep the statement of errors as brief as possible, the Counties have 

organized their discussion of certain specific grounds of error into two primary sections: (1) 

arguments, findings or conclusions for which the Counties seek additional findings or 

clarifications; and (2) arguments, findings or conclusions the Commission made that the Counties 

ask the Commission to reconsider. 

1. Arguments, findings, and conclusions for which clarification is sought. 

To the extent the Counties made certain arguments, proposed findings or conclusions that 

the Commission intentionally or inadvertently rejected without specific discussion (or with 

minimal discussion), the Counties now seek clarification or supplemental findings. These issues 

are briefly stated below. 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

4 

 

a. Proposed findings of fact. 

The Iowa Administrative Procedure Act specifically provides for proposed findings of fact 

in a contested case proceeding: “If, in accordance with agency rules, a party submitted proposed 

findings of fact, the decision shall include a ruling upon each proposed finding.” See Iowa Code  

§ 17A.16(1) (emphasis supplied). As the Order notes, the Commission has not adopted any rules 

regarding proposed findings of fact. Because the Commission’s rules do not restrict the submission 

of proposed findings and because none of the Commission’s orders in this proceeding disallowed 

proposed findings, the Counties maintain that the submission of proposed findings is “in 

accordance” with the Commission’s rules. For this reason, the Commission “shall include a ruling 

upon each proposed finding.” Id. 

As the Commission notes in the Order, the Counties and some other parties submitted 

proposed findings of fact. The Counties submitted a total of 24 proposed findings of fact in their 

Reply Brief. See Counties RB at page 37. The Commission declined to specifically address the 

Counties’ proposed findings of fact. See Final Decision and Order at 14. The Counties recognize 

that many (but not all) of the general matters touched on by the Counties’ specific proposed 

findings are discussed in various places in the Order, sometimes with rulings related to the general 

matter, but sometimes with only limited discussion or without a specific finding. The Counties 

urge the Commission to reconsider its interpretation of the requirements of Iowa Code § 17A.16(1) 

and respectfully ask that it provide a specific ruling on each of the Counties’ proposed findings. 

In particular, the Counties restate here several proposed findings for which they seek 

clarification as to the Commission’s findings: 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

5 

 

• Does the Commission find that the express purposes of the project include: (1) 

increasing profits to ethanol plants; (2) selling ethanol at premium prices; and (3) 

increasing corn prices? (See Counties proposed finding #2). 

• Does the Commission find that the project will likely increase the price at which 

Summit’s partner ethanol plants sell ethanol? (See Counties proposed finding #3). 

• Does the Commission find that the project will likely increase corn prices? (See 

Counties proposed finding #4). 

• Does the Commission find that the project will likely not increase ethanol 

production levels? (See Counties proposed finding #5). 

• Does the Commission find that the amount of federal tax credits that Summit will 

receive is substantially more than the amount of tax contributions Summit will 

make to government revenues? (See Counties proposed finding #6). 

• Does the Commission find that Summit used the same 400-foot screening distance 

that Dakota Access used? (See Counties proposed finding #15). 

• Does the Commission find that Summit has agreed to amend the pipeline route in 

the vicinity of the city of Bismarck, ND based on economic development concerns, 

but refuses to do the same for similarly situated Iowa cities? (See Counties proposed 

finding #22). 

b. Proposed permit conditions. 

Under Iowa Code § 479B.16, the Commission is only authorized to grant eminent domain 

rights “to the extent necessary.” As the Counties explained in their initial brief, the necessity 

requirement in Iowa Code § 479B.16 relates to the scope of the taking and requires that any taking 

must be necessary for the uses proposed. See the Counties’ IB at 17-19. A taking beyond the uses 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

6 

 

proposed is unlawful. See Draker v. Iowa Electric Co., 191 Iowa 1376, 1382, 182 N.W. 896, 899 

(1921); Vittetoe v. Iowa S. Utilities Co., 123 N.W.2d 878, 881 (Iowa 1963); SMB Investments v. 

Iowa-Illinois Gas and Elec. Co., 329 N.W.2d 635, 640 (Iowa 1983). The proposed uses must have 

a public purpose or benefit. See Puntenney v. Iowa Utilities Bd., 928 N.W.2d 829 (Iowa 2019). 

The Commission has the authority to prescribe and limit the scope of eminent domain to 

only what is necessary for the uses proposed through the imposition of permit conditions. See Iowa 

Code § 479B.16. Summit’s stated “purpose and need” for the project are that it will “(1) support 

the longevity and competitiveness of the ethanol and agricultural industries; (2) create and preserve 

jobs and economic productivity; and (3) benefit the environment by removing CO2 from the 

atmosphere. These three aspects present a clear purpose and need for the Project to support key 

industries, jobs, and the climate.” See Pirolli Direct Testimony at p. 3. In this proceeding, these are 

the public purposes or benefits for which the taking is purportedly justified. The Commission 

should impose permit conditions to ensure the grant of eminent domain is tailored appropriately 

to secure such public purposes or benefits. 

The Counties proposed several permit conditions, including six specific conditions that 

would ensure the taking is permanently linked to what constitutes the public necessity. See 

generally Counties IB at 82-86. The Counties now briefly restate those conditions and move the 

Commission to reconsider them. 

First, the Counties asked the Commission to impose a condition that Summit obtain all 

necessary permits before exercising rights of eminent domain. The Commission did not impose 

this condition. The Counties ask the Commission to reconsider its rejection of this condition. 

Second, the Counties asked the Commission to impose a condition requiring expiration and 

reversion if the regulatory markets for low carbon fuels are no longer accessible to ethanol. The 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

7 

 

Commission did not impose this condition. The Counties ask the Commission to reconsider its 

rejection of this condition. In its consideration of public convenience and necessity and discussion 

of the balancing test, the Commission clearly found that the ability to sell ethanol into low carbon 

fuel markets is one of “three significant national issues” that weigh in favor of the project. See 

Final Decision and Order at 105, 114-16. The Commission also found that “already being able to 

sell into the market reduces the overall positive to Summit Carbon’s petition, but does not weigh 

against it.” If, as the Commission has found, the ability to access low carbon fuel markets is a 

factor weighing in favor of the necessity of the proposed use, then it is appropriate that the 

Commission should impose a condition guarding against the loss of access to these markets. 

Third, the Counties asked the Commission to impose a condition requiring expiration and 

reversion if the sequestration of carbon dioxide is no longer eligible for the 45Q or 45Z tax credits. 

The Commission did not impose this condition. The Counties ask the Commission to reconsider 

its rejection of this condition. In its consideration of public convenience and necessity and 

discussion of the balancing test, the Commission clearly found that federal sequestration tax credit 

policy is one of “three significant national issues” and that this factor “weighs heavily in favor of 

granting Summit Carbon’s petition for hazardous liquid pipeline permit.” See Final Decision and 

Order at 105, 109-11. If, as the Commission has found, federal sequestration tax credit policy is a 

factor weighing “heavily” in favor of the necessity of the proposed use, then it is appropriate that 

the Commission should impose a condition guarding against a change in that policy. 

Fourth, the Counties asked the Commission to impose three conditions related to the 

climate benefits of the proposed use. The first was a condition requiring expiration and reversion 

if the pipeline owner or operator ever proposes to convert it to another use or to carry another 

commodity. The second was a condition requiring the sequestration of all carbon dioxide 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

8 

 

transported by the project and prohibiting any offtake of the carbon dioxide prior to the 

sequestration site. The third was a condition prohibiting the use of any of the transported carbon 

dioxide for enhanced oil recovery. The Commission did not impose any of these conditions. The 

Counties ask the Commission to reconsider its rejection of these conditions. In its consideration of 

public convenience and necessity and discussion of the balancing test, the Commission clearly 

found that climate change is one of “three significant national issues” and that Summit’s proposed 

use “will contribute to the reduction in ‘atmospheric contamination,’ thus providing an overall 

benefit to Iowans.” See Final Decision and Order at 105, 125. If, as the Commission found, the 

possible reduction in “atmospheric contamination” is a “significant benefit to Iowans,” then it is 

appropriate that the Commission should impose conditions securing that benefit against a change 

in the company’s use of the pipeline from what has been proposed and from what has been found 

to have “public convenience and necessity.” Without these conditions, the company could change 

the use of, or affect the benefits accruing from, the property taken by eminent domain, in which 

case what has been found to be a public benefit could one day be converted to a private use or 

benefit, if the permit is not appropriately prescribed. 

Finally, the Counties observe that while five of the six conditions restated in this section 

of the Motion relate directly to the Commission’s “three significant national issues,” none of the 

conditions are discussed in the public convenience and necessity section of the Order. For that 

reason, the Counties now ask the Commission to reconsider the conditions proposed on pages 82-

86 of the Counties’ Initial Brief and to use its authority to ensure that: (1) Summit’s project will 

actually deliver public rather than private benefits; and (2) the taking approved by the Commission 

is tailored to secure the public benefits of the proposed use. 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

9 

 

2. Arguments, findings, and conclusions that were discussed but are erroneous. 

The Order is 507 pages long and contains findings and conclusions throughout. The 

Counties’ primary arguments on the statutory requirements, findings of fact, public convenience 

and necessity, public use, and routing were made in their Initial Brief and in their Reply Brief. To 

the extent that the Commission rejected those arguments, such rejection constitutes grounds for 

error, unless reconsidered pursuant to this Motion. For purposes of this Motion, some of those 

arguments are briefly restated below. 

a. Erroneous findings of fact: Petition Requirements. 

The Counties maintain that the Commission clearly erred in its findings regarding 

compliance with the petition requirements. In particular, Iowa Code § 479B.5(7) requires that 

Summit’s petition must state the “relationship of the proposed project to the present and future 

land use and zoning ordinances.” (emphasis supplied).  Note that the statute unambiguously 

requires the petition to discuss “ordinances.” 

Zoning ordinances are regulations, not land use plans. In the county zoning chapter, the 

statute granting counties the authority to zone provides “the board of supervisors may by ordinance 

regulate and restrict” various land uses. Iowa Code § 335.3(1). The statutory requirement to 

discuss “zoning ordinances” is, therefore, a requirement to discuss the content of the regulations 

and restrictions in those ordinances. 

In the Order, the Commission makes the following finding regarding Summit’s compliance 

with the petition requirements: “Having reviewed the information, the Board finds Summit Carbon 

has complied with the requirements of Iowa Code § 479B.5(7) and 199 IAC 13.3(1)(f)(2)(3). A 

plain reading of these requirements provides that a hazardous liquid pipeline company need only 

state the relationship its proposed project has to present and future land use, which Summit Carbon 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

10 

 

has done.” See Final Decision and Order at 40 (emphasis supplied). However, the Commission’s 

finding has omitted the phrase “and zoning ordinances”, which is present in the statute. By omitting 

this phrase from the discussion, the Commission’s finding has plainly failed to address one of the 

statutory requirements. 

The Counties’ Witness Prof. Neil Hamilton submitted testimony clearly showing that 

Summit’s petition exhibits and expert witness testimony did not discuss a single ordinance or 

comprehensive plan. See generally, Counties IB at 34-40. Hamilton’s testimony also clearly 

showed that the use of the phrase “present and future land uses” in the statute refers to 

comprehensive plans. The Commission’s staff appears to have agreed with Hamilton’s assessment 

of the sufficiency of the petition. On June 26, 2023, after completing a review of the petition, the 

staff filed a Petition Staff Report (Excluding Exhibit H) (“the Staff Report”). The Staff Report 

found that the information Summit filed in its petition “regarding 199 IAC 13.3(1)(f)(2)(3) does 

not appear to address the future land use and zoning ordinances.” The Commission Staff Report 

directed Summit to provide additional information. See Petition Staff Report (Excluding Exhibit 

H) at pp. 8 and 12. Even after this report, Summit did not describe or refer to any zoning ordinance 

or comprehensive plan. 

The Order’s interpretation of the petition requirements on zoning ordinances is clearly 

erroneous. The Order states in one sentence: “Therefore, the requirement of Iowa Code                         

§ 479B.5(7) is to provide the Board with information as it relates to how the proposed project will 

interact with present and future land use and zoning, not necessarily how it complies.” See Final 

Decision and Order at 41-42 (emphasis supplied). But then it states in the very next sentence: “If 

and to what extent it complies is a decision for the Board to make as it examines the routing of the 

pipeline.” Id. (emphasis supplied). 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

11 

 

As explained above, zoning ordinances are regulations. If a pipeline company is not 

required to at least summarize and review the content of the regulations in each county, the petition 

will not provide sufficient information for the Commission to make a decision on the extent of 

compliance. The Commission has ordered this to be done for other permitting authorities, but 

refuses to do so for county regulations. This is clear error. Regardless of whether Summit is in 

compliance with the ordinances, the burden to include this information in the permit, or in 

testimony, is Summit’s. The effect of the Commission’s interpretation is to inappropriately shift 

the burden to other parties. 

For all of the reasons already argued in the Counties’ Initial Brief, in its Reply Brief, and 

briefly restated here, Summit’s petition failed to meet a threshold statutory requirement. 

Nonetheless, the Commission finds that Summit carried its burden on the requirement to state “the 

relationship…to zoning ordinances” when, as the record clearly shows, at no time did Summit 

describe, summarize or even mention a single ordinance in any county. The Commission’s finding 

on this statutory requirement is clearly erroneous, and the Commission should reverse this finding. 

Additionally, the Order refuses to impose the Counties’ proposed condition requiring 

Summit to comply with all other applicable permit requirements. See Counties IB at 80. The Order 

characterizes the Counties’ request as “additional conditions.” See Final Decision and Order at 43. 

The Counties dispute this characterization. As the Counties clearly argued in their Initial Brief, the 

Commission has a prior practice and precedent of expressly conditioning a pipeline permit on the 

obtaining of other necessary permits. Id. In fact, the Order itself conditions the commencing of 

construction on obtaining permits in North and South Dakota. The Counties again point out that 

the Commission included the proposed language in the Final Decision and Order in Iowa Utilities 

Board Docket No. HLP-2014-0001. If the Counties do not prevail in the zoning litigation, then the 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

12 

 

permits will not be necessary. If they do prevail, then obtaining them will be necessary. The 

proposed condition would appropriately address either outcome. The permit language should 

expressly reflect all other required permits, as the Commission has done in other dockets and even 

in the Order for state and federal permits. There is no basis to treat county zoning permits 

differently than county road permits, state routing permits or federal environmental permits. The 

Counties request the Commission reconsider its rejection of this proposed condition. 

Finally, the Commission rejected the Counties’ proposed condition that would have 

prevented pipeline construction from commencing until the conclusion of all pending zoning 

litigation. See Final Decision and Order at 43. If the counties prevail in the zoning litigation, then 

zoning permits will be applicable to the project and necessary to be obtained. If construction has 

already begun at that time, a ruling in favor of the counties would create turmoil. It is reasonable 

for the Commission to avoid that outcome now by imposing the Counties’ proposed condition. 

Therefore, the Commission should reconsider its refusal to expressly condition the commencement 

of construction upon the resolution of all pending zoning litigation, in order to preserve the 

jurisdictional interest of counties in local zoning permits. 

b. Erroneous findings of fact: Route Determination. 

The Commission rejected the Counties’ proposed separation requirements, both the two-

mile setback from cities and the uniform 1,000-foot setback from occupied structures, finding 

Summit’s “macro route to be just and proper.” See Final Decision and Order at 64. However, the 

weight of evidence in the record regarding (1) the economic development impacts of a carbon 

dioxide pipeline; and (2) the setback distances necessary to protect human health clearly support 

the use of reasonable setbacks throughout the “macro route.” The Commission’s finding on these 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

13 

 

setbacks clearly is not supported by substantial evidence in the record. For all of the reasons stated 

in the Counties’ Initial Brief and Reply Brief, the Commission should reconsider this finding. 

The Commission also rejected the Counties’ proposed denial of the trunk line from Ida 

County to Fremont County. For all of the reasons stated in the Counties’ Initial Brief and in 

Commissioner Byrnes’ dissent to the Order, the Counties ask the Commission to reconsider the 

approval of Lateral 4. 

c. Erroneous findings of fact (and Conclusions): Determination of Public 

Convenience and Necessity. 

In general, the Counties argue that Summit’s project lacks public convenience and 

necessity for all of the reasons already stated in their Initial Brief and Reply Brief. To the extent 

the Commission has rejected those arguments, the Order’s findings are erroneous and should be 

reconsidered. The Counties refer the Commission to pages 29-70 of their Initial Brief and to the 

proposed findings of fact in their Reply Brief. 

d. Erroneous findings of fact: Safety. 

As the Counties argued during the hearing and in their Reply Brief, the Commission has 

made errors of law in the treatment of Summit’s safety evidence by not excluding it on the basis 

of judicial estoppel. See Counties RB at 18-20. The Commission should reconsider this ruling, 

strike Summit’s safety evidence, and revise the determination of public convenience and necessity 

accordingly. 

e. Erroneous findings of fact: Transportation Methods. 

As the Counties argued in their Initial Brief, the transportation of carbon dioxide by rail or 

truck is a red herring. See Counties IB at 64-67. Unlike Dakota Access, Summit’s hazardous 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

14 

 

pipeline is not safer than the status quo because, unlike oil, at present carbon dioxide at ethanol 

plants is released into the atmosphere and not transported by truck or rail. Based only on the 

hearing testimony of Mr. Leaders, a landowner, the Order finds that there is “at least one ethanol 

plant currently capturing and transporting their ethanol by truck.” But the Counties do not argue 

that there is no transportation of carbon dioxide by truck and rail. They argue that Summit has not 

demonstrated with substantial evidence in the record that, without the pipeline, the participating 

ethanol plants intend to use trucks and rail for transportation. The Order nonetheless compares the 

safety of pipelines to the safety of trucks and rail. For these reasons and the reasons explained by 

the Counties in their Initial Brief, the finding on transportation methods is clearly erroneous under 

the reasoning in Puntenney and the Commission should reconsider it. 

f. Erroneous findings of fact: Conditions. 

The Counties argued for several conditions in their Initial Brief and Reply Brief. Many of 

those conditions are also discussed in this Motion, including the grounds for error. The Counties 

will not repeat those reasons here, but merely restate their request that the Commission reconsider 

all the conditions requested by the Counties that are rejected in the Order. 

g. Erroneous findings of fact: Public Use. 

The Order finds Summit’s pipeline to be a common carrier and grants rights of eminent 

domain on that basis. See Final Decision and Order at 288. The Counties maintain that Summit 

has not produced enough evidence in the record to establish that it is a common carrier. For all of 

the reasons articulated in the Initial Briefs of the Counties, the Sierra Club, and the Jorde 

Landowners, the Commission should reconsider this finding. 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

15 

 

h. Erroneous Conclusions of Law. 

In a separate section titled, “Conclusions of Law”, the Order makes six conclusions of law. 

See Final Decision and Order at 476. There is some overlap between the discussion of the parties’ 

arguments in the factual findings and the conclusions of law stated in the separate section. For the 

sake of completeness, the Counties briefly discuss these conclusions separately in this section of 

the Motion and ask the Commission to reconsider the following conclusions for the following 

reasons. 

First, the Commission concludes that “The requirements of Iowa Code § 479B.5 have been 

met by Summit Carbon.” For the reasons already discussed in their Initial Brief and Reply Brief, 

and as briefly restated above, the Counties maintain that Summit has not met the requirements of 

Iowa Code § 479B.5. In particular, the Counties argue that the requirement to state the relationship 

to “zoning ordinances” has not been met. 

Second, the Commission concludes that “Summit Carbon has established its hazardous 

liquid pipeline will promote the public convenience and necessity as required by Iowa Code               

§ 479B.9.” For the reasons already discussed in their Initial Brief and Reply Brief, and as briefly 

restated above, the Counties maintain the Commission’s Order makes legal and factual errors in 

its determination of public convenience and necessity. 

Third, the Commission concludes that “Summit Carbon will be vested with the right of 

eminent domain as described in this order, once a permit is issued, in accordance with Iowa Code 

§ 479B.16.” For the reasons already discussed in their Initial Brief and Reply Brief, and as briefly 

restated in this Motion, the Counties maintain that Summit is not a common carrier, is not 

proposing a public use or benefit, and should not be granted rights of eminent domain. 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001



 

16 

 

CONCLUSION 

For all the reasons discussed above, the Counties respectfully request that the Commission 

reconsider the Final Decision and Order approving a permit for Summit Carbon Solutions, 

particularly including the erroneous findings of fact and conclusions of law briefly restated here. 

 

      Respectfully submitted, 

 

     By:  /s/ Timothy J. Whipple    

      Timothy J. Whipple, AT0009263 

      Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 

      100 Court Avenue, Suite 600  

      Des Moines, IA  50309-2231 

      Telephone: (515) 246-0379 

      Email: twhipple@ahlerslaw.com 

 

      ATTORNEY FOR SHELBY, KOSSUTH, 

FLOYD, EMMET, DICKINSON, WRIGHT, 

AND WOODBURY COUNTIES  

       

 
02374262\20586-015 

Filed with the Iowa Utilities Commission on July 12, 2024, HLP-2021-0001

mailto:twhipple@ahlerslaw.com

	Insert from: "Closed Session.pdf"
	Salix Drainage District Postponement Date Agenda Item
	idcplg

	Insert from: "08-20 (ARPA FFE).pdf"
	Salix Drainage District Postponement Date Agenda Item
	idcplg
	08-06 (Attorneys MOU).pdf
	2024 Attorney MOU Agenda Item
	The Prosecutor Vacancy Crisis
	SSRN_Cover_Ltr_Template
	The Prosecutor Vacancy Crisis




	Date: 08/15/2024
	Weekly Agenda Date: 8/20/2024
	ELECTED OFFICIAL  DEPARTMENT HEAD CITIZEN: Chairman Matthew Ung
	ChkBox: Off
	ChkBox0: Off
	ChkBox1: Off
	ChkBox2: Off
	ChkBox3: On
	ChkBox4: On
	No: Off
	ChkBox5: Off
	Text1: Receive into record Woodbury County's July 12, 2024 Motion to Reconsider Final Decision and Order with the Iowa Utilities Commission regarding Summit Carbon Solutions, LLC and their hazardous liquid pipeline permit including rights of eminent domain
	Text2: The legal brief is attached to this item and is entered in the board minutes for easier public access online.
	Text3: On July 12, Woodbury County filed a motion to reconsider with the Iowa Utilities Commission ("IUC") regarding Summit and their petition for hazardous liquid pipeline permit. The IUC has not responded. They have not responded to important legal and factual deficiencies in their June 25 final decision and order. The IUC refused even to explain why it would not reconsider.
	Text4: n/a
	Text5: Woodbury County maintains that Summit Carbon Solutions, LLC ("Summit") is not a common carrier, is not proposing a public use or benefit, and should not be granted rights of eminent domain.
	Text6: n/a


